
WYCKOFF PLANNING BOARD 

NOVEMBER 14, 2007 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting: November 14, 2007 - 7:30 p.m. 
Location: Court Room 

Second floor, Memorial Town Hall 
 
Board Member Attendance: Gordon Stanley, Chairman; Robert Steinbruch, Vice 
Chairman; Joseph Fiorenzo, Twp. Comm. Rep.; Randy Hoogerheyde; Kathy Scarpelli; 
Fred Depken; Gerry Chi; Robert Kane, Alt.  Absent: David Connolly, Mayor; Dan 
Hartigan. 
 
Staff Attendance: Mark DiGennaro, Township Engineer; Joseph Perconti, Board 
Attorney; Susan Schilstra, Administrative Officer/Secretary.   
  

The following statement, in accordance with the Open Public Meeting Act, 
was made by the Chairman, Gordon Stanley, “The regular November 14, 
2007 Meeting of the Wyckoff Planning Board is now in session.  In 
accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, notice of this meeting  
appears on our Annual Schedule of Meetings. A copy of said Annual 
Schedule has been posted on the bulletin board in Memorial Town Hall; a 
copy has been filed with the Township Clerk, The Record, The Ridgewood 
News and the North Jersey Herald and News - all newspapers having 
general circulation throughout the Township of Wyckoff.  At least 48 hours 
prior to this meeting the Agenda thereof was similarly posted, filed and 
mailed to said newspapers." 
 

Approval of the October 10, 2007 Work Session Minutes 
Approval of the October 10, 2007 Regular Business Minutes 
 

1  RESOLUTION TO APPROVE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT 
 

 RESOLUTION #07-11 

 
Board Member Scarpelli made a motion to memorialize this resolution to approve 
vouchers for payment. Second, Board Member Hartigan. Mr. Kane, Ms. Scarpelli,  Mr. 
Chi, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch, and Chairman 
Stanley. 

 

2 RESOLUTION(S) TO BE MEMORIALIZED 

 

2A BARRISTER HOME CONSTRUCTION, INC. (BARRISTER AT DEEP BROOK) BLK 
497 LOTS 7, 8.01, 10 & 11.01 (RA-25); Ravine Avenue.  Preliminary Major 
Subdivision/variance.  (Hoogerheyde) 

 The site presently contains four (4) lots.  One lot, which contains an existing residential 
dwelling, fronts on Grandview Avenue. The largest of the three lots, known as the 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

2 

Mason family property, was previously zoned by Court Order for Affordable 
Housing/Multi-family for 99 units. The application proposes to subdivide the remaining 
three (3) lots into nine (9) conforming lots and to construct a new single family 
residence on these lots. A total of six (6) new homes are proposed by the application). 

 
 Chairman Stanley said the Barrister at Deep Brook resolution is under review and will 

be acted upon at the December 12, 2007 Planning Board meeting. 
 

2B WYCKOFF CAPITAL ADVISORS (Vander Plaat Funeral Home) BLK 259 LOT 26.02 
– Fence permit in a residential/business zone (RA-25/B3); 257 Godwin Avenue.  
(Scarpelli) (The applicant is requesting to install a fence in the rear yard) 
 

 Board Member Scarpelli made a motion to memorialize this resolution for a fence 
permit in a residential/business zone.  Second, Board Member Hoogerheyde.  Voting in 
favor:  Ms. Scarpelli, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch and 
Chairman Stanley. 

 

3 FOR COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

 

3A PAUL & ROSE FERRARO (MANE ON MADISON) BLK 238 LOT 13 (B1A); 238 
Madison Avenue.  Amended site plan/ variance.   (Scarpelli)  

 (Applicant is requesting to expand the existing building to include an elevator). 
 
Township Engineer DiGennaro said that he has reviewed this application.  It has been 
deemed complete. 
 
Board Member Scarpelli made a motion to deem this application complete and be 
scheduled for a public hearing at the Wednesday, December 12, 2007 public meeting 
agenda.   Second, Vice Chairman Steinbruch.  Voting in favor: Mr. Kane, Ms. Scarpelli, 
Mr. Chi, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch, and Chairman 
Stanley. 
 

*   *   *   *   * 
 

At this time Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the Township Municipal 
Consulting Engineer, Mr. Peter Ten Kate, is not present this evening.  He is at the 
League of Municipalities Conference and he is being awarded and is the recipient of the 
Municipal Engineer of the Year Award in the State of New Jersey which is given by the 
League of Municipalities and the New Jersey Society of Municipal Engineers.  It is an 
honor for Mr. Ten Kate to receive this.   The Board applauded Mr. Ten Kate for 
receiving this award.  
 

*   *   *   *   * 
 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

3 

4 FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

4A JOSEPH & KIM SALERNO BLK 214 LOT 92 (R-15); 329 Birch Parkway.  Minor site 
plan for a fence permit in a residential zone.  (Hartigan) 
(The applicant is requesting to install a fence in the second front yard along Godwin 
Avenue since this property is a corner lot))  
 
Chairman Stanley requested that all exhibits be made as identification at this time.  
A-1 Application and site plan 
 
Ms. Kim Salerno, 329 Birch Parkway, Wyckoff, NJ was sworn.  She stated that she 
would like to install a 6’ solid vinyl fence on the Godwin Avenue side of her house for 
the safety and protection of her children and dog and for privacy reasons.   
 
Chairman Stanley said this property is located on the corner of Godwin Avenue and 
Birch Parkway and has 2 front yards. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if the location of this fence violates any town 
ordinances as far as materials and the type of fence being proposed. 
 
Township Engineer DiGennaro said this application does not violate any sight line 
distance and is a 6’ fence which is not permitted in a front yard.  Since this is a corner 
lot a variance is being requested.  All materials and type of fencing are in accordance 
with township code. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch asked if this fence will connect with the neighbors fencing in 
the rear of the property.  He asked what the distance will be between the spruce trees 
and the property line. 
 
Ms. Salerno said the fence will be installed the full length of their property along Godwin 
Avenue and connect with the fencing in the rear. She added that the fence will be 
installed 4’ to 5’ behind the existing shrubbery on the property along Godwin Avenue. 
 
Chairman Stanley said the total fencing is 72’ starting from the garage to the west and 
then to the north. 
 
Ms. Salerno said yes, that includes Birch Parkway, the front of the yard and along 
Godwin Avenue.  An existing split rail fence is located at the rear of the property which 
will not be affected by the new fencing. 
 
Board Member Depken said that according to the Wyckoff Zoning Code plantings 3’ on 
center and half the height of the fence are required in front of the fence but since 
shrubbery is already present this requirement will be waived.  Be advised that if the 
present shrubbery dies it will need to be replaced. 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

4 

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo made a motion to approve the application as 
presented.  Second, Vice Chairman Steinbruch.  Voting in favor: Mr. Kane, Ms. 
Scarpelli,  Mr. Chi, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch, and 
Chairman Stanley. 
 

4B TADEUSZ & GRAZYNA ZIARKO BLK 231 LOT 10 (RA-25); 490 Clinton Avenue.  
Conditional use variance/minor site plan.    (Kane) 
(The application is requesting a waiver due to the excess amount of soil movement on 
the site for construction of the proposed dwelling, driveway, pool & grading for the site). 
 
Chairman Stanley requested that all exhibits be marked as identification at this time.  
 
A-1 Minor site plan application 
A-2 Storm Water Drainage Report dated 9/11/07 
A-3 Landscaping Plan by McNally Engineering dated 9/11/07 
A-4 Proposed single family dwelling plan by McNally Engineering dated 9/21/07 
B-1 Letter to McNally Engineering from Township Engineer dated 10/26/07  
 
Mr. Douglass Doolittle, the applicant’s engineer from McNally Engineering, was sworn.  
He said that he has prepared the plans for the applicant.  He said he is a licensed 
professional engineer, land surveyor and planner in the State of New Jersey.  He said 
he has testified before the Planning Board and Zoning Board numerous times in the 
past.   
 
The Board accepted Mr. Doolittle’s credentials as an expert witness. 
 
Mr. Doolittle said the applicant proposes to remove all structures on the site and 
construct a new single family residence primarily over the existing footprint of the home 
that is there today.  All bulk requirements will be satisfied along with the soil movement 
requirements.  A detention system will be installed for the increase in runoff and 
drainage calculations have been submitted to the Township Engineer. No waivers or 
variances are being requested except for the excavation of 1,784 cubic yards of soil 
filling 1,087 cubic yards and removing 697 cubic yards from the site.  The property is 
heavily wooded and 5 trees will need to be removed from the footprint of the home and 
2 trees are in the way of the proposed driveway. The applicant is trying to work with the 
aesthetics of the property.  The landscape plan indicates foliage between the property 
line and the house to create a buffer in this area.  The rest of the site to the east will be 
kept in its natural state.  A review letter was received from the Township Engineer dated 
October 21, 2007 and all aspects of the letter have been achieved to the satisfaction of 
the Township Engineer. 
 
Township Engineer DiGennaro asked if the applicant has submitted an application to 
the Bergen County Soil Conservation District. 
 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

5 

Mr. Doolittle said they have not done so at this time but will make this submittal a 
condition of approval.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked Mr. Doolittle to describe the size of the 
footprint of the property that is being proposed and compare it to the existing property.  
 
Mr. Doolittle said the lot area is required to be 25,000 square feet where the lot area is 
53,216 square feet.  The size of the proposed dwelling will be double the size of the 
existing dwelling.  The principle building coverage presently is 2.77% coverage and 
6.94% is proposed where 15% principle lot coverage is allowed. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said the landscape plan indicates removal of seven 
(7) trees.  He asked Mr. Doolittle where these trees are located on the plan. 
 
Mr. Doolittle said that on the landscape plan the northwesterly corner of the proposed 
home  has 3 X's that go through 3 existing trees.    
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if there was a way to preserve the tree 
located closest to Clinton Avenue. 
 
Mr. Doolittle said it is a 6” pine tree that can be preserved. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked why another tree on the easterly side of plan 
needs to be removed.  
 
Mr. Doolittle  said this 8” tree will need to be removed because the proposed drainage 
system will be located there.  Once excavation begins the roots may be undermined 
and the tree may die.  He said that the applicant can work around this tree and try to 
save it. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said there is room to move the seepage pit and 
save this tree.   He suggested that these 2 trees be saved.  With regards to the 5 trees 
that are going to be removed what does the applicant propose to add to the site in 
terms of landscaping?   
 
Mr. Doolittle said he will work to preserve the 6” and 8” trees.    He said that a series of 
trees, shrubs and lower ground cover will be added as well as landscaping around the 
dwelling.    The tree calipers range in size from 2 ½” to 3”.   
 
Board Member Chi asked why are you moving so much soil. 
 
Mr. Doolittle said they are moving this amount of soil because there is fill coming out of 
the new basement area, the pool itself and the pool area.  The driveway  area will be 
filled in order to bring the driveway up to grade.  Soil will also be removed for the 5 
seepage pits and drainage area.  



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

6 

 
Board Member Kane said there is a steep drop from the proposed driveway to the east.  
Are you proposing any retaining walls. 
 
Mr. Doolittle said the only retaining wall that is being proposed is to install a 2’ well 
around the one tree in the front yard.   
 
Chairman Stanley said this well will require engineer approval. 
 
Township Engineer DiGennaro said yes.  This was discussed since the stone retaining 
wall or well around the  tree is over 2’ which is indicated on Sheet 1 of 1 on the plan.  
 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
No one appeared 
CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Board Member Kane made a motion to grant the approval for soil movement to the 
applicant with a condition upon the submission of an application to the Bergen County 
Soil Conservation District and submission of a revised site plan reflecting the 
preservation of 2 trees. Second, Board Member Scarpelli.  Voting in favor:  Voting in 
favor: Mr. Kane, Ms. Scarpelli, Mr. Chi, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, 
Mr. Steinbruch, and Chairman Stanley. 
 

5 PUBLIC HEARING(S) SCHEDULED FOR THE 7:30 P.M. BUSINESS MEETING– 

Continued  

 

5A BARRISTER HOME CONSTRUCTION, INC. (BARRISTER AT RUSSELL FARMS) 
BLK 377 LOTS 1 & 18.05 (RA-25); Sicomac/Russell Avenue.  Preliminary Major 
Subdivision/variance.  (Hartigan) (This application proposes to create a seven (7) lot 
residential subdivision creating six (6) new single family residential lots on two (2) 
existing residential parcels totaling 5.66 acres).  

 
Mr. Robert Milanese, the principal of Barrister Home Construction and applicant, Mr. 
Andrew Missey, the applicant’s engineer, Mr. Peter Steck, the applicant’s planner and 
Mr. Russell Huntington, the applicant’s attorney, were present.   
 
Mr. Huntington said the applicant had re-noticed a month ago due to elapse of time 
between meetings.  The first meeting was on April 11, 2007.  On October 10, 2007 the 
public hearing continued as well as this evening. 
 
Board Member Kane and Board Member Chi stated to the Board that they have 
listened to the CD of the last meeting and will sign a certification as to same. 
 
Mr. Huntington then asked Mr. Missey to continue with his testimony.   



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

7 

 
Mr. Missey, who was previously sworn, stated to the Board that Exhibit A-13 varies from 
the original map by the following modifications:   
 
1. At the request of the Board the sewer extension has been relocated  to the 

center of Russell Avenue and extended the full length of the property frontage 
along Russell Avenue or 225’ ;   

2. Near the end of the cul-de-sac the lot lines have been modified to create more 
uniform shapes.  The altered lots are Lot 18.07, Lot 18.08, and Lot 18.09.  Ten 
(10) lot lines intersect with the street and 7 comply with lot design standards.   A 
design waiver is being requested for 3 lot lines. 

 
Mr. Missey said that the intent of this application is to create a new road for 6 new 
homes.  592 Russell Avenue, located on Lot 1, is the 7th lot with an existing dwelling.  
On 7 lots there are 9 bulk requirements for each lot.  Of all of the 63 bulk requirements 
for the entire site there are only 2 bulk requirements that do not comply with the towns 
zoning standards.   
 
Mr. Huntington said that a variance is also being requested for the disturbance of steep 
slopes.  He asked Mr. Missey to explain where the steep slopes are on this site. 
 
Mr. Missey said the steep slopes are in the rear of proposed Lot 18.08 and within the 
proposed right of way both on the new street and the widening of Russell Avenue.     
Lot 18.08 contains a stone barn, a gravel area and a macadam parking area and abuts 
Fire Company #3.  This is the area where steep slopes are located.  This area will be 
disturbed in order to make improvements on the lot and in doing so will trigger a steep 
slope variance.  He added that these areas are not natural but manmade improvements 
in this area in order to accommodate the business on site.  There is no environmental 
value to this area. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the disturbance of these slopes is a concern of the Board and the 
Township of Wyckoff’s ordinance. Would the disturbance of these slopes create any 
erosion, retaining walls or visual impairments. 
 
Mr. Missey said the slopes as they presently exist create erosion and increase the rate 
of run off then the proposed condition which will remove these features, reduce the 
impervious area in that area and replace the sloped areas with vegetated lawn areas.   
 
Mr. Huntington said there are more sloped areas along Russell Avenue.  He asked Mr. 
Missey to explain this area to the Board. 
 
Mr. Missey said the sloped areas along Russell Avenue on the macadam sidewalk are 
in some instances 4' higher than Russell Avenue and the slope continues 15’ along the 
orchard area.  Two items that necessitate the disturbance of the slopes are the need to 
access the proposed cul-de-sac from Russell Avenue and the need to create a clear 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

8 

site line in Russell Avenue towards Sicomac Avenue by reducing the grade of the 
macadam sidewalk area.    The benefits will be the control of run-off from the site.  The 
visual appearance once the steep slopes are removed along the roadway will be a 
sidewalk associated with the grade of Russell Avenue itself.   
 
Mr. Huntington asked what the condition of the site is now with regards to drainage. 
 
Mr. Missey said that presently the property has about 80,000 square feet of impervious 
area.  The overall property size of the site combined with 592 Russell Avenue is 5.7 
acres.  Our proposal is to reduce the impervious coverage by over 16,000 square feet. 
One way to accomplish this is by removing the structures and pavement from the 
parking areas and replacing them with the new street and driveways.  Presently the run-
off from barn area/parking lot on proposed Lot 18.08 is directed to the north and east to 
a drainage swale which flows down to Lydia Lane and also through a series of ditches 
and pipes on the property itself which presently discharge into the brook.  Under the 
new proposal the surface water will be handled by both a conventional storm drain 
system as well as a water quality treatment device located on proposed Lot 18.08 to 
filter the run-off from the property.  On each of the proposed lots there will also be 
standard dry wells or seepage pits facilities.  He added that run-off quality and run-off 
quantity proposed conditions will be better than what exists now.  This proposed 
application will reduce the quantity of impervious area that will generate increased 
storm water runoff and we will direct the run-off that will occur towards a retention 
facility on the lot or to a storm drain facility which will then carry that storm water 
through a water quality device and discharge it into the brook.  
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the current topography on Lot 18.08 
results in a swale which directs the water towards Lot 78, Mr. Berardo’s lot.  The natural  
conditions which presently exist create a water problem and drainage issues since 
there is an elevation drop of 11 feet.  The applicant will be reducing the impervious 
coverage and because of the onsite retention in the form of dry wells for individual lots 
should negate this condition in the area. 
 
Mr. Missey said that the present conditions with a 100 year storm event there would be 
7¾ cubic feet per second and in the proposed conditions the amount of run-off will be 
reduced to 1½ cubic feet per second.  20% of the quantity of runoff in that direction in 
proposed condition verses than what exists now will be a reduction of 80% in run-off 
from the site.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said the net effect of these improvements will be a 
reduction in run-off of 80%. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked that in addition to the reduction in the quantity is there a change 
in quality when the impervious area is reduced. 
 
Mr. Missey said one of the advantages of run-off going over vegetated areas is the 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

9 

slowing of rate of run off and the second advantage is that vegetation traps and 
contains suspended solids. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if there are any protective measures necessary for the stream.    
 
Mr. Missey said there are 3 immediate protective regulations that the applicant must be 
alerted to.  First, the applicant must keep the disturbance a minimum of 25 feet from the 
top of the bank of the water course.  The second is the applicant must investigate the 
water course and determine what flood elevations will be at in a 100 storm event. And 
third,  whether there are any wetlands or State Open Water courses.  This plan adheres 
to all protective regulations to the water course.  The letter of interpretation (LOI) 
process with the NJDEP which has confirmed that the downstream are wetlands and 
the upstream towards Russell Avenue is classified as state open waters.   
 
Mr. Huntington then asked about the Russell Avenue frontage adjacent to Lot 1.  He 
asked if the County has right of way (ROW) requirements for this. 
 
Mr. Missey said that Lot 1 or 592 Russell Avenue is the only property on this side of 
Russell Avenue that has not been the subject of a development application.  The 
County has the maintenance obligation and jurisdiction over Russell Avenue and has 
requested ROW easements in the past from neighboring property owners.  The current 
right of way is also the property line for Lot 1.   If the road is widened, this will create a 
front yard setback variance requirement where 45’ presently exists which will be 
reduced to 25.4’. The applicant may have the opportunity to grant to the county a road 
widening easement.    
 
Mr. Huntington asked if there is any physical widening of the roadway on the proposed 
plan at this time. 
 
Mr. Missey said there is no road widening at that location.  
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the County may require that an easement 
be given of land on Russell Avenue even though it may not be contemplated in this 
application to build on it.  The County, since it now has the missing link of easement on 
Russell Avenue, may decide next year that it would like to widen the road on Russell 
Avenue.  Will the County Engineer require a contribution to the cost of the construction 
of the road? 
 
Mr. Huntington said that our proposal is to tender to them a contribution in lieu of the 
road improvement.  Our principle concern is the bucolic scene that the applicant would 
like to preserve in this area for the community.  
Mr. Missey said there exists a picket fence and a tree.  If the County would like the 
street widened, the picket fence and the tree would have to be removed.  Widening of 
the road would diminish the aesthetics of the area.  The County would probably accept 
a contribution in lieu of construction of the roadway.  There is no benefit for the capacity 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

10 

of Russell Avenue or any long term impact or advantage of widening the roadway.  The 
right of way can be granted but the road widening is not necessary in this residential 
zone.  He added that the proposed subdivision property perimeter presently has an 
existing stone wall and hedge which will remain in its present state.  The driveway 
between this property and the Fire House will be permanently closed.  The vegetative 
screening will remain.  On Lot 18.05 a conservation easement will be proposed and 
preserved. There is a drainage easement and flood encroachment line on Lot 1 will 
remain untouched.   
 
Chairman Stanley asked if the culvert where it crosses Russell Avenue and enters onto 
Lot 1 would be of sufficient width to cover the right of way easement which may be 
given to the County.  
 
Mr. Missey  said no.  The culvert would either need to be extended or a modest bridge 
could be constructed in place of the culvert. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked if the applicant has heard from the county as to what their 
decision is with regards to widening Russell Avenue.  He said that the town may have 
some affect on the road widening depending on how the Planning Board views the 
widening.  The corner of Sicomac and Russell Avenue is very dangerous. He asked if 
there is a road widening easement for this corner already in place? 
 
Mr. Missey said yes it exists and probably has for 20 to 30 years. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch said that the road widening easement actually extends from 
Sicomac Avenue and past Temple Beth Rishon. This is the last piece of the right of 
way.  What is your experience with the County when it gets the last piece of the puzzle? 
 
Mr. Huntington said the County has a county map of right of way and they just collect 
them as land is developed. 
 
Chairman Stanley said the County has been collecting land for a very long time. 
 
Vice Chairman Steinbruch said that he is concerned with the existing dwelling and its 
closeness to the street he would not be in favor of a road widening.   
 
Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Missey if there is a distinction to be made between the  front 
yard measurement and the distance from the edge of pavement to a home. 
 
 
Mr. Missey said there is a significant difference in this situation because the edge of 
pavement is 45'.  Under the proposed condition this 45’ will remain in place. But the 
right of way or property line will be moved back 19.6' .   Ten (10) feet of the right of way 
will be left undeveloped for grading and a sidewalk. 
 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

11 

Chairman Stanley reiterated that the drainage to the rear of the property by Lydia Lane 
will be reduced by 80% in rate of run off.  This will be accomplished by directing roof 
areas to dry wells and by grading the property so that run-off will be directed to storm 
drains in the street. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said this is an application in which there are 
variances sought for 2 of the lots that are being proposed.  The lots are 18.09 for lot 
depth and for Lot 1 which is for a front yard setback where there will be 25.4 feet.  In 
addition to this there are 2 other categories of variances being requested for side lot 
lines at right angles for Lots 18.08, 18.09 and 18.10.  There are also 2 steep slope 
variances that are being required for Lot 18.08.  Sheet 5 of 7 indicates that the 
variances for Lot 18.08 are 1 variance for each of the three steep slope categories.  
There is also a steep slope variance required for the proposed right of way and a 
design waiver for odd shaped lots.  Mr. Fiorenzo noted the amount of odd shaped lots 
and how many sides they have. 
 
Mr. Missey said the shape of the entire parcel of land is irregular. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo added that this plan seeks lots which have 
variances which can be eliminated by reducing the number of lots.  He asked if the 
applicant has analyzed this site as to whether a plan can be created to present to this 
Board that fully complies with the township ordinances. 
 
Mr. Missey said a plan cannot be created that will fully comply and conform to the 
township ordinances. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that 6 lots are proposed. A fully conforming 
plan can be created by eliminating one lot and reduce the number of variances that are 
being sought. 
 
Mr. Missey said that Lot 18.09 requires a variance for depth.  Lot 1 has an existing front 
yard setback variance.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that by eliminating Lot 18.09 there would be 
additional land available to reconfigure the layout of Lot 18.08 so as to eliminate the 
steep slope variance.   
 
Mr. Missey said the steep slope variances would still be required because the applicant 
needs to remove the stone barn, the gravel parking area and the macadam parking 
area on proposed Lot 18.08.  The same quantity of slope will be disturbed along with 
the small amount of steep slope disturbance on Lot 18.09.   The steep slope variance 
does not go away. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if a soil analysis was performed on this 
property.   



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

12 

 
Mr. Missey said sample test pits were performed to determine the characteristic of the 
soil.  This information is located in the drainage calculation report.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that there was testimony as to the macadam 
area being filled at one point in time. Do you know how long these conditions existed on 
the site?       
 
Mr. Missey said these conditions have been on site for over 20 years.  
 
Mr. Huntington said it is not the applicant’s position that there is an exemption from the 
steep slope ordinance as to man-made conditions on site. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo then asked Mr. Missey to address the landscape 
plan for this proposed subdivision and the total amount of trees that are going to be 
removed. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked if the landscape plan is dated May 11, 2007. 
 
Mr. Missey said this is the correct date on the plan.  He said that a total of 5 trees will 
be removed for the proposed roadway, no trees for the lots and also 124 peach trees in 
the orchard will be removed. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if the steep slope variance in the roadway 
can be moved in order to reduce the impact of the slope ordinance 
 
Mr. Missey said if the applicant moves the roadway to the south a steep slope variance 
is still needed for the right of way because of the need to create the road geometry into 
the site from Russell Avenue.   
 
Chairman Stanley said that since the fruit trees have not been taken care of they are no 
longer hardy trees.  They are not trees that we would like to preserve. He suggested 
that these trees can be replaced.  
 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC to ask questions of the Applicant’s Engineer. 
 
Mr. Nick Berardo, 536 Lydia Lane, Wyckoff, NJ.  I had previously submitted a drainage 
issue letter to the Board. 
Marked at this time was the following exhibit: 
C-1 Drainage Issues Associated with Russell Farms Development 
 
Mr. Berardo said that Mr. Missey had discussed the changes in the rear yard of Lot 
18.08 with regard to the slope areas being converted to landscaped areas. The existing 
slope on the rear of Lot 18.08 currently is gravel.  Is this still considered impervious? 
 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

13 

Mr. Missey said it is still gravel or impervious for our calculations.  
 
Township Engineer DiGennaro said gravel would be considered pervious and would be 
given a lower coefficient from macadam. 
 
Mr. Berardo said it was established that there will be a decrease in drainage and that 
most of the soil was sandy loam and that it percolates well.  Have you considered that 
adjacent soils may not be sandy loam?   
 
Mr. Missey said that as you proceed to the south soil mapping units change.  This 
property has a better permeability rating than soils to the south.   
 
Mr. Berardo said that the off site soil is grossly impervious.   
 
Mr. Missey said that the benefits remain from this development as to reducing the rate 
of run-off in the direction of Lydia Lane.   He said this does not change the drainage 
calculations. He added that it is the applicant’s obligation to reduce the rate of run-off 
from the site. 
 
Mr. Brian Scanlan 51 Ravine Avenue, Wyckoff, NJ.  He asked if there was any 
requirement from the DEP or some other agency to test the soil around the trees or 
existing structures for pesticides, insecticides, or any type of toxicity in the soil. 
 
Mr. Missey said this process has been done on the site. 
 
CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC for questioning of the Applicant’s Engineer. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked about the environmental impact study (EIS). 
 
Mr. Huntington said that Mr. Milanese is going to testify about the testing that was 
undertaken. 
 

A FIVE MINUTE RECESS WAS TAKEN AT THIS TIME 
 
Mr. Peter Steck, 80 Maplewood Avenue, Maplewood, NJ was sworn.    
  
Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Steck if he had an exhibit that depicts the existing conditions 
on site.  
 
Marked as identification at this time were the following exhibits: 
A-14 Tree and front yard on Lot 1 
A-15 Aerial of site prepared by Peter Steck, 4-10-07 
 
Mr. Steck said that A-15 shows the outline of the site depicted with a yellow line.  A 



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

14 

single family house exists on Russell Avenue as well as an existing agricultural use 
which consists of temporary and permanent buildings and a paved area.  This use is 
discordant with the neighborhood.  The present owner’s are entitled to operate a farm 
under the Right to Farm Act.  It will be beneficial to change the use to a residential 
development with single family homes on 25,000 square feet of land which is consistent 
with the Wyckoff Master Plan.  Design waivers or standards, Section 168-19D in the 
township zoning code, are being requested for side lot lines which should be at right 
angles and also for odd shaped lots which are irregular in shape with many sides.   The 
intent of the ordinance is a sufficient building envelope of sufficient area and shape that 
can accommodate a standard single family dwelling. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if the proposed lots are in conformance with the township 
ordinance. 
 
Mr. Steck said this is a typical development except that the exterior dimensions of the 
property are irregular.  The abutting properties are already developed.  This proposed 
subdivision complies with all of the setback requirements.  None of the lots are 
contrived but are very traditional at the end of the cul-de-sac.  
 
Marked as identification at this time was the following exhibit: 
 
A-16 A section of the Wyckoff tax map showing existing cul-de-sacs with red dots 
 
Mr. Huntington said that this exhibit shows that development patterns around cul-de-
sacs are not always radial or perpendicular. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if any of the lots on this exhibit have 6 sides. 
 
Mr. Steck said some of the irregular lots have 5 sides.  He said that the point he is 
trying to get across is that when you gravitate from a rectangular grid street system and 
propose cul-de-sac lots, it is typical to have instances of lots that are non rectangular. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked if the variance on Lot 18.09 could be eliminated by combining it 
with the neighboring lot.  
 
Mr. Steck said the one aspect of depth could be eliminated by combining the lots.  It will 
not make the lot any wider it would just be measured in a different way.  With regards to 
planning bigger lots are not always better.  The plan that is proposed produces a more 
predictable layout that is more consistent with the surrounding area.  He added that the 
building envelope on Lot 18.08 can easily accommodate a single family house.  The 
proposed application is 14’ short as far as the depth of Lot 18.08.   
 
Board Member Chi said there is a purpose for the zoning requirements.  There have 
been a few applications requesting a variance for lot depth or the width because the 
Board does not allow this.  



11-14-07RM         Planning Board 
 

15 

 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the house on Lot 18.08, if it were 
compliant with the lot depth requirement, that house would be further away from the 
property to its rear. 
 
Mr. Steck said there is no substantial detriment since this lot conforms to the rear yard 
and front yard setbacks of 40' which is required in this RA-25 zone. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said there is a detriment.  The detriment is that you 
have a lot that doesn’t have the depth required under the township ordinance which 
was intended to be deeper for a reason. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that it is appropriate that this variance be examined by the board 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said the Board will need to determine if a detriment 
exists.  The township bulk requirements were created for a reason and a purpose.   
 
Mr. Steck said the house on this lot would be smaller in size and in effect there is more 
room to expand the footprint. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that in the RA-25 zone there is a reasonable expectation that there 
would be a house within 40' of the property line. The neighbors will not be impacted by 
this subdivision.  This property would be built out in accordance with the Wyckoff 
Master Plan. 
 
This application will be continued at the Wednesday, December 12, 2007 Planning 
Board meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
There being no further business, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made and 
seconded and passed unanimously.  The meeting concluded at 10:11 p.m. 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

Susan Schilstra, Planning Board 
Administrative Officer/Secretary 


